

Meeting Minutes North Hampton Planning Board Tuesday, June 6, 2017 at 6:30pm Town Hall, 231 Atlantic Avenue

7 8 These minutes were prepared as a reasonable summary of the essential content of this meeting, not as a 9 transcription. 10 11 In attendance: Tim Harned, Chair; Nancy Monaghan, Vice Chair; Members Dan Derby, Josh Jeffrey, and 12 Jim Maggiore, Select Board Representative; Alternate Member Shep Kroner; Jennifer Rowden, RPC 13 Circuit Rider; and Rick Milner, Recording Secretary. 14 15 Chair Harned called the meeting to order at 6:34pm. 16 17 I. Old Business 18 1. Case #17:04 – Applicants, Annette Lee and Nicole Carrier, 2 Elm Road, North Hampton, NH 03862. 19 The Applicants request a site plan review to amend previous site plan approvals by making 20 improvements to current business operations for Throwback Brewery located at 2 Elm Road including building expansion and enlargement of outdoor customer seating area. The Applicants 21 22 request the following waivers to the requirements of the Town of North Hampton Site Plan 23 **Regulations:** 24 a. Section XII – Parking Requirements 25 b. Section X.G – Stormwater Management 26 c. Section VIII.B.27 – Architectural Rendering 27 Property Owner: Annette Lee and Nicole Carrier, 2 Elm Road, North Hampton, NH 03862; Property 28 Location: 2 Elm Road, North Hampton, NH 03862; M/L: 013-009-000; Zoning District: I-B/R, 29 Industrial – Business/Residential District, and R-1, High Density District. 30 31 In attendance for this application: 32 Applicant did not attend the meeting. 33 34 Mr. Maggiore recused himself from the Board. 35 Mr. Harned appointed Mr. Kroner to stand in for Mr. Wilson. 36 37 Mr. Harned explained to the Board that the NHDOT driveway permit connected to the 2016 amended 38 site plan conditional approval for the Throwback Brewery site needed to be amended. The Board cannot 39 proceed with consideration of the current application due to the fact that this condition of the 2016 40 approval for the site has not been completed and the plan has not been recorded at the County 41 Registry. Mr. Harned informed the Board that the applicant has requested that the current case be 42 continued to the July 18 meeting date. 43 44 Mr. Derby moved that the Planning Board continue Case #17:04 to the July 18, 2017 meeting date. 45 Second by Ms. Monaghan. The vote was 4-0-1 in favor of the motion with Mr. Kroner abstaining. 46 47 Mr. Maggiore returned to the Board.

Page 2 of 9

48 II. New Business

49 1. Case #17:05 – Applicant, Ravenmore Properties, LLC – Linda Chestney, 1399 Ocean Boulevard, Rye, 50 NH 03870. The Applicant requests a preliminary consultation to discuss proposed lot line 51 adjustment between property located at 208 Atlantic Avenue and old railroad corridor property. 52 Property Owners: Ravenmore Properties, LLC – Linda Chestney, 1399 Ocean Boulevard, Rye, NH 53 03870 and Boston & Maine Corp, c/o Guilford Transportation, Iron Horse Park, North Billerica, MA 54 01862; Property Locations: 208 Atlantic Avenue and old railroad corridor; M/L: 007-076-000 and 55 999-011-000; Zoning District: I-B/R, Industrial - Business/Residential District. 56 57 In attendance for this application: 58 Linda Chestney, applicant; Anne Bialobrzeski, land surveyor for the applicant; Nancy Beveridge, realtor 59 for the applicant. 60 61 Ms. Beveridge addressed the Board. Ms. Beveridge stated that, during marketing for sale of the train 62 depot property located at 208 Atlantic Avenue, research by the property owner's consultant discovered 63 that portions of the train depot building and the septic system associated with that building encroached upon the adjacent former railroad corridor property. The applicant wishes to purchase approximately 64 65 10,630 square feet of the corridor property to remove the encroachment issues. 66 67 Mr. Harned stated that he is aware that the State of NH has a right of first refusal to purchase the 68 corridor property and may install a recreational rail trail along the corridor in the future. He asked when 69 the State of NH right of first refusal expires. 70 71 Ms. Bialobrzeski addressed the Board. Ms. Bialobrzeski stated that the state's right of first refusal 72 expires on or about June 8, 2017. Ms. Bialobrzeski asked for the Board's non-binding guidance on the 73 following issues associated with the submittal of an official lot line adjustment application for this 74 proposed transfer of property: 75 a. Is the letter of authorization provided by Boston and Maine Corporation c/o Pan Systems, Inc. 76 sufficient authorization to proceed with a lot line adjustment application? 77 The Board came to a consensus without objection that the letter of authorization provided by Boston 78 and Maine Corporation c/o Pan Systems, Inc. is sufficient authorization to proceed with a lot line 79 adjustment application. 80 81 b. Will the applicant be required to notify owners of every property abutting the former railroad corridor 82 in the entire Town of North Hampton or just the abutters in the immediate vicinity of the train depot 83 property? 84 Ms. Rowden stated that, while notifying only the abutting property owners in the immediate vicinity 85 may be reasonable and practical, it may not satisfy legal requirements. She suggested that the Board 86 consult legal counsel to determine legal notification requirements and avoid possible town liability if a 87 challenge or appeal to the Board's decision is made. 88 89 The Board discussed the abutter notification issue as it relates to the town's potential liability, the risk 90 that the application may be challenged, and the scope of property owners which is reasonable to notify. 91 92 The Board came to a consensus without objection that legal notification to the owners of all 93 properties abutting the former railroad corridor between Atlantic Avenue and Cedar Road and those

94 95	properties across the streets of Atlantic Avenue and Cedar Road from the former railroad corridor would meet the spirit and intent of the notification law.
96	
97 98	c. Would the Board accept waiver requests regarding topography of the site and many other standard lot line adjustment waiver requests?
99	Ms. Rowden stated that waiver requests for many regulations are typical for a standard lot line
100	adjustment application. She offered a non-binding opinion that, since no impacts to the site or
101	structures is intended with the proposed application, wetland delineation is not necessary.
102	
103	The Board did not offer any non-binding opinions regarding the waiver request question.
104	
105	d. Due to the swampy nature of the land in the southern portion of the current train depot property,
106	would the Board waive the monumentation requirements for the southeast and southwest corners of
107	the current train depot property?
108	Ms. Bialobrzeski explained where the monuments would be set for the proposed new lot lines and the
109	difficulty in completing monumentation of the southeast and southwest corners.
110	
111	Mr. Harned stated his non-binding opinion that the southwest corner abutting the former railroad
112	corridor should receive new monumentation. Monumentation of the southeast corner may not be
113	necessary.
114	
115	Mr. Harned asked for clarification regarding the specifications of the existing septic system for the train
116	depot building.
117	
118	Ms. Bialobrzeski stated that an old, but functional, 2800 gallon brick tank was in place. Pipes are coming
119	out of the tank. However, the direction or eventual terminus location of the pipes are not known.
120	
121	Mr. Maggiore asked for clarification if the proposed lot line adjustment would interfere with the State of
122	NH plans to create the recreational rail trial.
123	NAL DISLAM STATES AND A
124	Ms. Bialobrzeski explained how, in her opinion, there would be enough space remaining within the
125	former railroad corridor to create the recreational trail.
126	Mc. Dowdon stated that a sufficient width of land would remain to install a multi-use nath
127 128	Ms. Rowden stated that a sufficient width of land would remain to install a multi-use path.
128	Mr. Harned stated that State of NH RSA 228:60-a requires that no railroad right-of-way in this state shall
130	be used for any purpose that would unreasonably limit the ability to restore rail service over the right-
131	of-way. He suggested that the applicant provide signed documents from the State of NH indicating that
132	the state has waived its right of first refusal to purchase the corridor property and that the applicant's
133	proposed purchase does not inhibit the ability for the area to comply with RSA 228:60-a in the future.
134	
135	Ms. Chestney addressed the Board. Ms. Chestney stated that she had no intention to inhibit
136	opportunities for biking and other recreational activities.
137	
138	2. Case #17:06 – Applicant, MAC Construction – Robert MacDonald, 90 Lovering Road, North
139	Hampton, NH 03862. The Applicant requests a site plan review to construct a 5,400 square foot
140	commercial building with associated site improvements for proposed retail, office, and outside

141	material storage uses at 227 Lafayette Road. The applicant requests a Conditional Use Permit to
142	allow commercial use within the Aquifer Protection District. The applicant also requests a waiver to
143	the requirements of the Town of North Hampton Site Plan Regulations Section X.G – Stormwater
144	Management. Property Owner: Robert MacDonald, 90 Lovering Road, North Hampton, NH 03862;
145	Property Location: 227 Lafayette Road, North Hampton, NH 03862; M/L: 020-012-000; Zoning
146	District: I-B/R, Industrial – Business/Residential District.
147	
148	In attendance for this application:
149	Robert MacDonald, applicant; John Chagnon, engineer for the applicant; Colby Gamester, attorney for
150	the applicant.
151	
152	Mr. Chagnon addressed the Board. Mr. Chagnon explained that the applicant was submitting a new site
153	plan due to the fact that the original 2015 site plan conditional approval had expired. Due to the
154	changed intended uses for the site, a special exception granted by the Zoning Board of Adjustment is no
155	longer necessary. The proposed building is smaller than the 2015 proposed building. Mr. Chagnon
156	presented the following plan details:
157	a. The existing conditions plan indicates the baseline topography which exists underneath the
158	recent site changes.
159	b. The revised plan indicates two entrances to the site with a loop traffic circulation pattern.
160	c. Parking is located along the front and south side lot lines of the property.
161	d. There are 25 parking spaces based on retail/office use calculations contained within the site plan
162	regulations.
163	e. There will be three units within the building. Mr. MacDonald will use one space for his
164	construction business and sublease the other two spaces.
165	f. Rain gardens have been included in the stormwater management design to treat and infiltrate
166	stormwater flow.
167	Stormwatch now.
168	Mr. Chagnon presented responses to the Town Engineer's review letter comments.
169	with chagnon presented responses to the rown Engineer's review letter comments.
170	Mr. Harned asked for clarification regarding the scope of vehicle and equipment maintenance
171	mentioned in the applicant's response letter as it relates to the site's location in the Aquifer Protection
172	District.
172	District.
174	Mr. MacDonald responded that there would be no servicing of vehicles or equipment which included
175	
175	fluid work or replacement; only general parts maintenance and replacement would occur on the site.
	Ma Devides suggested that a condition of energy all could state that contain types of convision would not
177	Ms. Rowden suggested that a condition of approval could state that certain types of servicing would not
178	be allowed on the site.
179	My Charge an atom of the table meterial stars are used indicated and the site stars used of the factor of the
180	Mr. Chagnon stated that the material storage use indicated on the site plan would be for temporary
181	storage of truck load amounts of sand, loam, stone, and gravel which would be removed as needs on
182	different construction sites warrant. The applicant does not intend to create a storage yard for large
183	amounts of material.
184	
185	Ms. Monaghan stated that there has been a large amount of material currently stored on the site for a
186	long time. She asked for an explanation for this current long-term storage.
187	

188 189	Mr. MacDonald stated that the material was needed to create elevations and site improvements indicated on the site plans.
190	
191 192	Mr. Harned asked if the sign indicated in the site plan was dark sky compliant.
193	Mr. Chagnon responded that the sign lighting was downward pointing. A plan note will be added which
194	indicates that lighting will be dark sky compliant.
195	
196	Mr. Chagnon addressed the Town Engineer's note that the site does not have the required frontage
197	along a roadway for two driveways to be included in the site design. Site Plan Regulations require 300
198	feet of frontage. The site has 197.36 feet of frontage. Mr. Chagnon stated that, since Lafayette Road/US
199	Route 1 is a state road and the NHDOT has provided an initial favorable response to the proposed plan,
200	the two driveway design should be allowed.
201	
202 203	Ms. Rowden stated that a waiver would need to be granted to allow the two driveway design.
204	Mr. Harned stated his concern that there may be traffic safety issues along US Route 1 with the
205	driveway layout as presented.
206	
207	Mr. Chagnon requested that the Planning Board accept the application as complete due to the plan
208	revisions and responses to the Town Engineer's review letter presented at the meeting.
209	
210	Ms. Rowden stated that the application was not complete due to the waivers needed for the driveway
211	design and compliance to the recently adopted stormwater regulations. Ms. Rowden explained that the
212	application conformed to the previous stormwater regulations. However, the application was submitted
213	after posting of the public hearing in which the current stormwater regulations were adopted.
214	Therefore, the plan must conform to the current regulations or be granted a waiver.
215	
216	Mr. Harned suggested that any waiver to the current stormwater regulations include a condition
217	requiring conformance to the previous stormwater regulations.
218	
219	Mr. Harned asked the Board if it was willing to move forward with discussion of waivers since revised
220	plans were first presented to the Board at the beginning of the meeting.
221	
222	The Board came to a consensus without objection to move forward with discussion of waivers.
223	
224	Mr. Chagnon presented a request for a waiver from Site Plan Regulation Section X.F regarding
225	stormwater management with the condition that the applicant will design the site to the previous 2014
226	Site Plan Regulation X.G regarding stormwater management.
227	
228	Mr. Harned opened the public hearing at 8:38 pm. No comments were made. Mr. Harned closed the
229	public hearing at 8:39 pm.
230	The Decoded the construction of the construction of the test of the test of the test of the construction of the
231	The Board discussed the timing of the application submittal and the differences between the previous
232	and current stormwater regulations. Ms. Rowden suggested that a condition of approval be added that
233	requires an annual report be submitted to the Town confirming that the stormwater management

234 235	structures are functioning properly. Mr. Harned suggested that the condition be attached to the site plan approval, not the waiver approval.
236 237	Mr. Kroner moved that the Planning Board grant a waiver from Site Plan Regulation Section X.F
238 239 240	subject to the condition that the applicant shall design the site to conform to the previous 2014 Site Plan Regulation X.G. Second by Mr. Jeffrey. The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (6-0).
241 242	Mr. Chagnon presented a request for a waiver from Site Plan Regulation Section X.A.4 allowing two driveways only when a lot has a frontage of 300 feet or more.
243 244 245	Ms. Monaghan asked why a two driveway design was necessary.
245 246 247 248	Mr. Chagnon responded that the two driveway design would provide better traffic circulation for large vehicles and equipment.
249 250	Ms. Monaghan asked for clarification regarding the frequency of traffic in and out of the site.
251 252 253	Mr. MacDonald responded that vehicles associated with his business would leave once in the morning around 7:30 am and return once in the afternoon around 4:30 pm.
254 255 256	Mr. Harned opened the public hearing at 8:58 pm. No comments were made. Mr. Harned closed the public hearing at 8:59 pm.
257 258	Mr. Kroner expressed concerns that the two driveway design with two access/egress points so close together would create traffic safety problems in a high volume area of US Route 1.
259 260 261	Mr. Maggiore stated that, when added to other proposed development in the immediate area, this proposed development may increase potential traffic safety risks.
262 263 264 265 266	Mr. Derby stated that a change to one driveway instead of two driveways will not change traffic safety concerns in a significant way. It may be as good or better for access and egress to have two driveways rather than one.
267 268 269	Mr. Harned stated that a two driveway design may work for the on-site traffic circulation; but it does not work for the traffic interaction along US Route 1.
270 271 272 273 274	Mr. Chagnon stated that there are other current two driveway designs located along US Route 1 with higher traffic volumes than proposed by the applicant's intended uses. Also, new proposed development in the immediate area will have significantly less traffic volumes than the previous businesses. The NHDOT should determine the safety of curb cuts along a state roadway.
274 275 276 277	Ms. Rowden stated that the applicant's proposed development does not create a significantly higher traffic density in the area.
277 278 279	Mr. Maggiore moved that the Planning Board grant a waiver from Site Plan Regulation Section X.A.4 to allow two driveways on a lot with less than 300 feet of frontage as presented on the June 6, 2017

280	plan set submittal. Second by Mr. Derby. The vote was 3-3 not in favor of the motion with Mr. Harned,
281	Ms. Monaghan, and Mr. Kroner opposed.
282	
283	Mr. Harned suggested that, without the waiver being granted, the application is not complete.
284	
285	Ms. Rowden suggested that the Board not take jurisdiction of the plan since the driveway configuration
286	may change.
287	
288	Ms. Monaghan stated that it appears that the application is not complete. She suggested that the Board
289	not take jurisdiction of the application and continue the case to the next meeting date. Mr. Harned
290	agreed with Ms. Monaghan since the revised plans were received shortly before the meeting.
291	
292	Mr. Maggiore moved that the Planning Board continue Case #17:06 to the July 18, 2017 meeting.
293	Second by Ms. Monaghan. The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (6-0).
294	
295	3. Case #17:07 – Applicant, Millie Bauer, LLC – Greg Bauer, 16 Woodknoll Drive, North Hampton, NH
296	03862. The Applicant requests a site plan review to amend previous site plan approval for mixed
297	use/workforce housing by changing single family residence to a duplex residence on property
298	located at 52 Lafayette Road. Property Owner: Millie Bauer, LLC, 16 Woodknoll Drive, North
299	Hampton, NH 03862; Property Location: 52 Lafayette Road, North Hampton, NH 03862; M/L: 008-
300	024-000; Zoning District: I-B/R, Industrial – Business/Residential District, and R-1, High Density
301	District.
302	
303	In attendance for this application:
304	Greg Bauer, applicant; John Chagnon, engineer for the applicant.
305	
306	Mr. Chagnon addressed the Board. Mr. Chagnon stated that the current application was an amendment
307	to a previous site plan for mixed use/workforce housing. The building in the rear of the property is
308	proposed to be changed from a single family home to a duplex residence with access off of Sylvan Road.
309 310	Mr. Chagnon provided the following responses to the Town Engineer's review letter:a. The septic system design has been revised to account for additional bedrooms contained in the
311	duplex units.
312	b. Wetlands scientist certification is still pending. The delineation of the wetlands should not have
313	changed since the previous 2015 approval.
314	c. Notes indicating provisions of previous site plan approvals have been added to the plan set.
315	d. The change to a duplex building and associated revisions added 1% to 2% to the site coverage.
316	
317	Mr. Chagnon requested that the Planning Board accept the application as complete.
318	
319	Ms. Rowden stated that the application is complete in her opinion.
320	
321	Mr. Jeffrey asked how much of the original site plan approval has been constructed.
322	
323	Mr. Bauer explained the aspects of the site work that have been completed.
324	
325	Mr. Harned asked for clarification regarding the workforce housing units in the proposed duplex building
326	and on the entire site.

327 328	Mr. Bauer stated that one unit in the duplex residence would be allocated to workforce housing and one unit would be a market rate unit. This specification matches the one unit allocated to workforce housing
329	in the single family home design. Mr. Bauer confirmed that he is complying with the required workforce
330	housing certifications and document filings for the site.
331	nousing certifications and document mings for the site.
332	Ms. Rowden stated that, since the Planning Board has declared that the Town of North Hampton has
333	met its workforce housing requirements, the proposed plan meets the requirements of the Inclusionary
334	Housing Ordinance.
335	
336	Ms. Monaghan asked when the applicant intended to build the duplex unit.
337	
338	Mr. Bauer estimated that he would start construction of the duplex unit in the fall of 2017.
339	
340	Mr. Kroner moved that the Planning Board finds that the applicant has provided the required
341	information for a complete application and that the Planning Board take jurisdiction of the amended
342	site plan application for mixed use/workforce housing by changing single family residence to a duplex
343	residence on property located at 52 Lafayette Road. Second by Mr. Derby. The vote was unanimous in
344	favor of the motion (6-0).
345	
346	Mr. Kroner suggested that the Planning Board consider instituting standards for a phased approach to
347	completing site construction work associated with future site plan applications, especially for sites near
348	residential areas. A phased approach, where a section of a site is completely constructed and
349	appropriately landscaped before construction begins on another section of a site, would help avoid a
350 351	situation where residential neighbors experience unsightly site conditions for lengthy periods of time.
352	Ms. Monaghan asked for clarification regarding the storage of structures on the site.
353	ins. Monagnan asked for clarification regarding the storage of structures on the site.
354	Mr. Bauer explained that the structure storage was approved on a previous site plan. The structures will
355	be moved to the approved locations once construction of the site is completed.
356	
357	Mr. Harned noted that the depiction of the tree line on the site was not consistent between the
358	different pages of the plan set.
359	
360	Mr. Chagnon confirmed that the depiction of the tree line on page C1 was correct. He will revise the
361	other pages to reflect the tree line depicted on page C1.
362	
363	Mr. Harned opened the public hearing at 9:48 pm.
364	
365	Hilary Brown addressed the Board. She asked if the trees that have fallen near the back of her property
366	will be cleared away.
367	
368	Mr. Bauer responded that the trees were not on his property. He needs to ask the property owner for
369	permission to clean up the fallen trees.
370	Journal Detters addressed the Decard Mr. Detters stated that Mr. Decard beck and the short of the
371	Jarrod Patten addressed the Board. Mr. Patten stated that Mr. Bauer has completed the phases of the
372 373	52 Lafayette Road project in a timely manner. Mr. Bauer has done a good job at developing the site.
515	

- 374 Mr. Harned closed the public hearing at 9:54 pm.
- 375

376 Mr. Maggiore moved that the Planning Board approve the Site Plan Review application for Case

377 **#17:07** to amend previous site plan approval for mixed use/workforce housing by changing single

- family residence to a duplex residence on property located at 52 Lafayette Road subject to the
 following conditions:
- Depiction of tree line is revised on all pages of the site plan to indicate current existing tree line as
 shown on page C1 of site plan dated June 6, 2017.
- **2.** Applicant shall submit a clean letter from the Town Engineer.
- Applicant shall submit a recordable Mylar of the approved plan with signatures and seals affixed
 of all licensed professionals whose names appear on the plan. All conditions of approval shall be
 listed on the Mylar pursuant to NH RSA 676:3.III.
- Applicant shall submit a Certificate of Monumentation, stamped and signed by a NH Licensed
 Land Surveyor, certifying that all monuments depicted on the plan have been properly set.
- Applicant shall submit evidence of receipt of all required federal, state, and local permits
 including, but not limited to, NHDOT driveway and NHDES subsurface system approvals and shall
 note their numbers, as appropriate, on the recorded page of the plan.
- Applicant shall submit a check made payable to the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds in the
 amount of \$25.00 for mandatory state fee to fund the Land and Community Heritage Investment
 Program (LCHIP).
- All fees incurred by the Planning Board including, but not limited to, consulting, engineering and
 legal fees, have been paid by the applicant.
- 396 8. There shall be no changes to the approved site plan on the recordable mylar except to meet these
 397 conditions of approval.
- 398 Second by Mr. Derby. The vote was unanimous in favor of the motion (6-0).
- 399
- 400 III. Other Business
- 401 1. Minutes.
- 402 Mr. Harned presented the minutes of the May 16, 2017 Planning Board meeting.
- 403 Ms. Monaghan moved that the Planning Board accept the minutes of the May 16, 2017 Planning
- 404 Board meeting as written. Second by Mr. Maggiore. The vote was 5-0-1 in favor of the motion with
- 405 Mr. Kroner abstaining.
- 406407 The meeting was adjourned at 10:08pm without objection.
- 408
- 409 Respectfully submitted,
- 410
- 411
- 412
- 413 Rick Milner
- 414 Recording Secretary